**A Joint Powers Authority** 

Sacramento, California

Independent Auditor's Reports, Management's Discussion and Analysis, Basic Financial Statements and **Required Supplementary Information** 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022



Independent Auditor's Reports, Management's Discussion and Analysis, Basic Financial Statements and Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

# Table of Contents

Page
Independent Auditor's Report1
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position—Governmental Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds: Balance Sheet – General Fund
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual
Note to Required Supplementary Information19
Other Report:
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>



# **Independent Auditor's Report**

Board of Directors Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority Sacramento, California

# **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

### **Opinions**

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and the General Fund of the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (Groundwater Authority), as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Groundwater Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and the General Fund of the Groundwater Authority, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

# **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Groundwater Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

# **Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements**

The Groundwater Authority's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Groundwater Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and *Government Auditing Standards* will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Groundwater Authority's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Groundwater Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters that we identified during the audit.

# **Required Supplementary Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2022 on our consideration of the Groundwater Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Groundwater Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Groundwater Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Macias Gini É O'Connell LAP

Sacramento, California October 28, 2022

Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

This section of the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority's (Groundwater Authority) annual financial statements presents a discussion and analysis of the Groundwater Authority's financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the Groundwater Authority's basic financial statements following this section.

# FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- As of June 30, 2022, the Groundwater Authority's governmental activities and general fund reported net position and fund balance of \$381,402.
- The increase in total net position and fund balance of \$454,289 in Fiscal Year 2021-22 is primarily attributable to lower costs related to the development of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the South American River Subbasin in Fiscal Year 2022.

# **OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Groundwater Authority's basic financial statements. The Groundwater Authority's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) **Government-wide** financial statements; 2) **Fund** financial statements and 3) **Notes** to the basic financial statements.

**Government-wide Financial Statements** are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Groundwater Authority's finances in a manner similar to private-sector businesses.

The *Statement of Net Position* presents information on all Groundwater Authority assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as *net position*. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator as to whether the financial position of the Groundwater Authority is improving or declining.

The *Statement of Activities* shows changes in net position during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, *regardless of the timing of related cash flows*. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., warrants payable).

The purpose of both of these government-wide financial statements is to report the functions of the Groundwater Authority that are principally supported by operating grants and contributions (*governmental activities*). The government-wide statements focus is long-term, however, the Groundwater Authority does not currently own any long-term assets or have long-term liabilities.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9 through 10 of this report.

**Fund Financial Statements** are groupings of related accounts that are used to control resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Groundwater Authority, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. As stated previously, the Groundwater Authority has only one *governmental fund*, the General Fund.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

**Governmental** funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as *governmental activities* in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on *near-term inflows* and *outflows of spendable resources*, as well as on *balances of spendable resources* available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for *governmental funds* with similar information presented for *governmental funds* with similar information presented for *governmental funds* may be useful the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Groundwater Authority's near-term financing decisions.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 11 through 12 of this report.

**Notes to the Basic Financial Statements** provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements, can be found on pages 13-17 of this report.

# **GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS**

Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator as to whether the financial position of the Groundwater Authority is improving or declining.

Statement of Net Position Governmental Activities June 30, 2022								
						Increase / (I	Decrease)	
		2022		2021		Amount	Percentage	
Total assets	\$	470,971	\$	1,017,286	\$	(546,315)	-53.7%	
Total liabilities		89,569		1,090,173		(1,000,604)	-91.8%	
Net position (deficit) Unrestricted	\$	381,402	\$	(72,887)	\$	454,289	623.3%	

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Groundwater Authority reported a balance of \$381,402 in *net position*. The increase in net position is primarily due to a decrease in expenses for Groundwater protection and preservation as detailed below.

The following table indicates the changes in net position for the Groundwater Authority's governmental activities:

#### **Statement of Activities Governmental Activities** For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

						Increase / (I	ecrease)	
	2022		2021		Amount		Percentage	
Revenues:								
Program revenues:								
Contributions	\$	753,816	\$	1,236,539	\$	(482,723)	-39.0%	
State Grants		670,045		1,050,407		(380,362)	-36.2%	
Groundwater fee assessments		168,496		-		168,496	100.0%	
General revenues:								
Interest		4,444		4,915		(471)	-9.6%	
Total revenues		1,596,801		2,291,861		(695,060)	-30.3%	
Expenses:								
Groundwater protection and preservation		1,142,512		2,792,209		(1,649,697)	-59.1%	
Change in net position		454,289		(500,348)		954,637	190.8%	
Net position, July 1		(72,887)		427,461				
Net position, June 30	\$	381,402	\$	(72,887)				

The decrease in program revenues is attributable to lower member contributions and a decrease in the Sustainable Groundwater Management Grant from the California Department of Water Resources offset by the commencement of the collection of groundwater fee assessments in Fiscal Year 2021-22. The decrease in expenses is attributable to a decrease in professional services for the development of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the South American River Subbasin.

# FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Groundwater Authority uses *fund accounting* to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

*Governmental funds.* The focus of the Groundwater Authority's general fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of *spendable* resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Groundwater Authority's financing requirements. In particular, *unassigned fund balance* may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At June 30, 2022, the Groundwater Authority's general fund reported a fund balance of \$381,402.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

The following table presents the amount of revenues from various sources.

	FY 202	22	FY 202	21	Increase / (Decrease)		
		Percent		Percent		Percent	
Revenues by Source	Amount	of Total	Amount	of Total	Amount	Change	
Contributions	\$ 753,816	47.1%	\$ 1,236,539	54.0%	\$ (482,723)	-39.0%	
State Grant Revenue	670,045	42.0%	1,050,407	45.8%	(380,362)	-36.2%	
Groundwater fee							
assessments	168,496	10.6%	-	0.0%	168,496	100.0%	
Interest	4,444	0.3%	4,915	0.2%	(471)	-9.6%	
Total	\$ 1,596,801	100.0%	\$ 2,291,861	100.0%	\$ (695,060)	-30.3%	

# Revenues Classified by Source Governmental Funds

Contributions revenue decreased due to lower connection contributions in the amount of \$482,723. State grant revenue also decreased in the amount of \$380,362 for the Groundwater Sustainability plan from the California Department of Water Resources. The groundwater fee assessments, previous adopted in Fiscal Year 2020-21, were collected for the first time in Fiscal Year 2021-22.

The following table presents expenditures by object class.

# Expenditures by Object Class Governmental Funds

	FY 2022			 FY 2021			Increase/(Decrease)		
Expenditures by			Percent		Percent			Percent	
Object Class		Amount	of Total	 Amount	of Total		Amount	Change	
County services	\$	381,873	33.4%	\$ 472,420	16.9%	\$	(90,547)	(19.2%)	
Professional services									
and fees		752,110	65.9%	2,312,351	82.8%	(	1,560,241)	(67.5%)	
Insurance		8,529	0.7%	7,438	0.3%		1,091	14.7%	
Total	\$	1,142,512	100.0%	\$ 2,792,209	100.0%	\$ (	1,649,697)	(59.1%)	

The decrease in expenditures is explained on page 6 of this report.

# **General Fund Budgetary Highlights**

The Fiscal Year 2021-22 Final Budget was adopted by the Groundwater Authority's Board of Directors on May 12, 2021.

There were no changes between the Original Budget and the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

The Groundwater Authority budget is based off of actual costs incurred in the prior year, and incurred less than anticipated total expenditures by \$254,255 in Fiscal Year 2021-22. This was mainly attributable to less than anticipated actual costs incurred in other professional services and fees by \$278,833 in Fiscal Year 2021-22.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

#### **Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget**

The Fiscal Year 2022-23 Final Budget was adopted by the Groundwater Authority's Board of Directors on June 8, 2022.

The proposed means of financing the \$1,170,742 in budgeted expenditures for Fiscal Year 2022-23 includes member contributions totaling \$747,753, Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) contributions of \$140,000, reserve release of \$101,564, groundwater fee assessments of \$176,425, and interest income of \$5,000.

## **Request for Information**

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Groundwater Authority's finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Camelia Radulescu, CPA, Chief Financial & Administrative Officer, Sacramento County Department of Water Resources, 827 7<sup>th</sup> Street, Room 301, Sacramento, CA 95814.

# **BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

# Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities

June 30, 2022

	 Governmental Activities			
ASSETS				
Cash and investments	\$ 467,133			
Grants receivable	1,477			
Interest receivable	2,361			
Total Assets	 470,971			
LIABILITIES				
Warrants and accounts payable	 89,569			
NET POSITION				
Unrestricted	\$ 381,402			

# Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

				Program		Revenue / pense) and		
	]	Expenses		Charges for Services		Operating Grants and Contributions		hange in t Position
FUNCTION/PROGRAM Groundwater protection and preservation	\$	1,142,512	\$	168,496	\$	1,423,861	\$	449,845
General revenues: Interest								4,444
Change in net position								454,289
Net position (deficit), July 1								(72,887)
Net position, June 30							\$	381,402

Balance Sheet General Fund June 30, 2022

	General Fu		
ASSETS			
Cash and investments	\$	467,133	
Grant receivable		1,477	
Interest receivable		2,361	
Total assets	\$	470,971	
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE			
LIABILITIES			
Warrants and accounts payable	\$	89,569	
FUND BALANCE			
Unassigned		381,402	
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$	470,971	

# Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

	Ger	neral Fund
REVENUES		
Contributions	\$	753,816
Intergovernmental - State grant revenue		670,045
Groundwater fee assessments		168,496
Interest		4,444
Total revenues		1,596,801
EXPENDITURES		
Current:		
Groundwater Protection and Preservation:		
County services		381,873
Professional services and fees		752,110
Insurance		8,529
Total expenditures		1,142,512
Net change in fund balance		454,289
Fund balance (deficit) - beginning		(72,887)
Fund balance - ending	\$	381,402

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

# NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

### Authorized Legislation and Organization

The Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (Groundwater Authority), which was created effective August 29, 2006, pursuant to Section 6500 of the California State Government Code and the provisions of a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, is a political subdivision of the State of California. The Groundwater Authority is a jointly governed organization under GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment of GASB Statements No.14 and No.34. Parties to this agreement are the City of Elk Grove, City of Folsom, City of Rancho Cordova, City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento, Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District, Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water Service, Omochumne-Hartnell Water District, and Rancho Murieta Community Services District. The Groundwater Authority was formed to maintain the long-term sustainable yield of the Central Basin; ensure implementation of the Basin Management Objectives prescribed in the Groundwater Management Plan; oversee the operation of a Well Protection Program; manage the use of groundwater in the Central Basin and facilitate implementation of an appropriate conjunctive use program by water purveyors; coordinate efforts among those entities represented on the governing body of the Groundwater Authority to devise and implement strategies to safeguard groundwater quality; and to work collaboratively with other entities in order to promote coordination of water policies and activities throughout the region. The Groundwater Authority is governed by a Board of Directors, which consists of sixteen members. Representation includes a Board member from nine public agencies, two private water purveyors, one representative of agricultural interests, one representative of agriculture-residential groundwater users, one representative of commercial/industrial self-supplied groundwater users, one representative of conservation landowners, and one representative of public agencies that are self-supplied groundwater users. The County of Sacramento is responsible for the Treasurer and Controller functions of the Groundwater Authority.

# **Basis of Presentation**

# Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the primary government (Groundwater Authority).

The statement of activities presents direct expenses and program revenues for the groundwater protection and preservation function of the Groundwater Authority's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and; therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.

Program revenues include grants, contributions and groundwater fee assessments that are intended to meet the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including interest income, are presented instead as general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, restricted resources are used first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

## **NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)**

#### Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Groundwater Authority's General Fund which is used to account for all revenues and expenditures necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the Groundwater Authority.

#### Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the Groundwater Authority gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include member contributions.

The General Fund is reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Non-grant revenues are considered measurable and available when their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of the accounting period. For grant revenues, the period of availability is 120 days.

#### Contribution Revenue

Each member of the Groundwater Authority contributes annually based on various formulas set forth in the Joint Powers Agreement. Budgeting for each fiscal year is based on the amount to be received from these contributions. Contributions are payable in annual installments within 30 days of receipt of billing.

#### Groundwater Fee Assessment Revenue

In June, 2021, the Groundwater Authority adopted a four-year program that requires property owners within the South American River Subbasin to pay an annual flat parcel and groundwater use fee. These fees are included on property owner utility bills or billed through property tax rolls.

#### Fund Balance

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) fund balances are available, the Groundwater Authority's policy is to first apply restricted fund balance. When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the Groundwater Authority's policy is to first apply committed fund balance, then assigned fund balance, and finally unassigned fund balance.

Only the Board has the authority to assign unassigned fund balance amounts where the Groundwater Authority's intent is for those amounts to be used for specific purposes.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

## **NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)**

#### Fund Balance (Continued)

The Board of Directors, as the highest level of decision-making authority, may commit fund balance for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal actions taken, such as a resolution. These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board removes or changes the specified use through the same type of formal action taken to establish the commitment. Board action to commit fund balance needs to occur within the fiscal reporting period; but the amount, if any, which will be subject to the constraint, may be determined at a subsequent period.

#### Minimum Fund Balance Policy

The Groundwater Authority is required to budget for and maintain a 20% operating reserve. This is an ongoing reserve with the purpose of assuring adequate funds are available for operations pending the receipt of annual contributions from member agencies. The policy requires unassigned fund balance to be at least equal to 20% of budgeted expenditures at year-end.

#### Cash and Investments

Pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, the Treasurer of the County of Sacramento (County) has custody of all cash for the Groundwater Authority. The Groundwater Authority's share of the County Treasurer's cash and investment pool (County Pool) is separately accounted for and interest earned, net of related expenses, is apportioned at the end of each quarter based upon the relationship of its daily cash balance to the total of the County Pool.

The value of the Groundwater Authority's shares in the County Pool is determined on an amortized cost basis, which approximates fair value.

#### Fair Value Measurement

The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset's fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. As the Groundwater Authority participates in the County Pool, which is an external investment pool, it is not subject to the fair value hierarchy.

#### **NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS**

The Groundwater Authority's cash and investments are held in the County Pool. The County Pool is not rated by credit rating agencies. At June 30, 2022, the Groundwater Authority's cash and investments held in the County Pool totaled \$467,133. Additional information regarding the Pool, including the investment portfolio and related interest rate, custodial credit, credit and concentration of credit risks, is presented in Note 4 of the County's basic financial statements. The Groundwater Authority has not formally adopted an investment policy that addresses any of the risks previously noted. However, since the Authority's investments are entirely in the County Pool, the Groundwater Authority follows the County's investment policy. Deposits and withdrawals from the County Pool are made on the basis of cost, and not fair value.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

# NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The County Pool is subject to regulatory oversight by the Treasury Oversite Committee of the County, as required by Section 27134 of the California Government Code. The County Pool is not registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an investment company.

## NOTE 3 – RISK MANAGEMENT

The Groundwater Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Groundwater Authority reports all of its risk management activities in its General Fund. The Groundwater Authority purchases commercial insurance for property damage and liability through an insurance agent, who obtains the appropriate insurance coverage needed by the Groundwater Authority from insurance companies.

Coverage	Limits	Deductibles/SIR	Carrier	Effective Date	Policy Number or Memorandum Number
General Liability, Automotive, Public Officials Errors and Omissions	\$5,000,000 Each Occurrence and Aggregate \$1,000,000 Damage to Rented Premises	\$1,000	Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.	9/29/2021– 9/29/2022	PAC 214510004

The Groundwater Authority's deductibles and maximum coverage is as follows:

Since the inception of the policy in September 2013, there have been no instances of settlements which exceeded insurance coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage.

## NOTE 4 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Groundwater Authority uses County departments for other services, such as engineering, administrative, and legal counsel. Expenditures paid to the County during the year were \$381,873.

Engineering	\$ 311,632
Administrative	38,425
County Counsel	31,816
Total	\$ 381,873

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

# NOTE 5 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of operations, the Groundwater Authority is subject to claims and litigation from outside parties. The Groundwater Authority believes the ultimate outcome of such matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial condition and does not anticipate any material effect on its June 30, 2022 financial statements.

**REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION** 

# Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance Budget and Actual For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 General Fund

	Budgeted Amounts					Variance with		
	(	Original		Final		Actual	Final Budget	
REVENUES								
Contributions	\$	295,816	\$	295,816	\$	753,816	\$	458,000
Intergovernmental		1,089,510		1,089,510		670,045		(419,465)
Groundwater fee assessments		-		-		168,496		168,496
Interest		6,000		6,000		4,444		(1,556)
Total revenues		1,391,326		1,391,326		1,596,801		205,475
EXPENDITURES								
Current:								
Groundwater Protection and Preservation:								
County services		358,024		358,024		381,873		(23,849)
Professional services and fees		1,030,943		1,030,943		752,110		278,833
Insurance		7,800		7,800		8,529		(729)
Total expenditures		1,396,767		1,396,767		1,142,512		254,255
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over								
(under) expenditures		(5,441)		(5,441)		454,289		459,730
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE								
(GAAP BASIS)		(5,441)		(5,441)		454,289		459,730
FUND BALANCE (Deficit), July 1		(72,887)		(72,887)		(72,887)		-
FUND BALANCE (Deficit), June 30	\$	(78,328)	\$	(78,328)	\$	381,402	\$	459,730

See accompanying note to the required supplementary information.

Note to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

### **Budget and Budgetary Accounting**

The Groundwater Authority prepares and legally adopts a final budget on or before June 30 of each fiscal year. The Groundwater Authority's operation, commencing July 1<sup>st</sup>, is governed by the proposed budget, adopted by the Groundwater Authority Board of Directors by June of the prior fiscal year.

After the budget is approved, modifications can only be made after consideration and approval by the Groundwater Authority Board of Directors. All such changes must be within the revenues and reserves estimated as available in the final budget or within revised revenue estimates as approved by the Groundwater Authority's Board.

The Executive Director prepares and submits a proposed budget to the Board of Directors no later than the last regularly scheduled meeting before the commencement of the ensuing fiscal year. After reviewing the proposed budget and making such revisions as it may deem advisable, a final budget is prepared and adopted no later than the June Board meeting. Budgetary control is at the fund level. An operating budget is adopted each year on the modified accrual basis.

**OTHER REPORT** 



# Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With *Government Auditing Standards*

Board of Directors Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority Sacramento, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and the General Fund of the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (Groundwater Authority) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Groundwater Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2022.

# **Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Groundwater Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Groundwater Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Groundwater Authority's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

#### **Report on Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Groundwater Authority's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Macias Gini É O'Connell LP

Sacramento, California October 28, 2022